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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association {SECP MBA),
Inc. is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of ils financial stalements for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, in accordance with Phifippine Financial Reporting Slandards (PFRSs), and for
such internal conlral as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from materdal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the fnancial slalements, management is responsible for assessing the Association's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related lo going concern and using the gaing
concern basis of accaunting uniess management e'ther intends to liquidate the Associalion or to cease

perations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Truslees is responsibls for oversecing the Association's financial reporting process.

The Board of Trustees reviews and approves the financial slatements and subrrifs the same to the members of
the Asscciation,

Quilab & Garsula, CPAs, the independent auditors appointed by the Board of Trustees for the pericds
December 31, 2023 and 2022, have audilad the financial slatements of the Association in accordance with
Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs), and in their reports to the Board of Trusiees and members, have
expressed their opinion on the faimess of presentalion upaon comspletion of such audils.

April 29, 2024, Legazpl City, Albay, Pollippings.

Mﬁ.;»/
FR. JOSEVICTOR E. LOBRIGO ROBERIO A, DALIT

Plesident () MBA Manager
R\OSAN BALLARBARE '
Treasurer :
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(DA, NEA, MISEREOR, KNH
The Board of Trustees and Members of

Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro
Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc.
3/F The Chancery, Cathedral Compound, Old Albay District, Legazpi City

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audiled the financial statements of Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit
Association (SEDP MBA), Inc. which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2023
and 2022, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in fund
balances and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to financial statements comprising
of a summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory notes, collectively referred to as
ffinancial statements’'.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all materials respects, the financial
position of Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc. as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our responsibilities under

those standards are further described in the Audilors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics), together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibiiilies of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial stalements, management is responsible for assessing the Association’s abilityto . .
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease '
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. '

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the/A:s'sébi

& &

ation’s financial reporting process.
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Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audilors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effecliveness of the Association’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
eslimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association's ability to continue as a going cencern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements, or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors'
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a
going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disciosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audits,

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The supplementary information on taxes, licenses and fees in Note 27 to the financial statements is
presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic P
financial stalements. Such information is the responsibility of management. The information has been subjected:
to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial‘statements. In our opinion, the inforifation

is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic _‘(;eig{?ial statements; taken as awh




QUILAB & GARSUTA, CPAs

QUILAB & GARSUTA, CPAs
By:
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Partner
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc.

December 31, 2023 2022

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Nofe 5) R157,304,146 P64,275,097

Investments in debt and equity securities (Not 6) 52,344,559 44,389,487

Trade and other receivables (Nate 7) 1,217,748 616,476

Other assets (Nole 8) 197,679 34,747
Total Current Assets 211,064,132 109,315,807

Non-Current Assets

Investments in debt and equity securities (Nots 6) 231,464,986 264,925,279

Trade and other receivables (Nafe 7) - 27,000,000

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment — net (Note 9) 455,022 534,790

Retirement plan asset — net (Note 13) 357,358 74,498
Total Non-Current Assets 232,277,366 292,534,567

R443,341,498

R401,850,374

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables (Noie 10) 9,414,286 B19,312,224
[nsurance contract liabilities (Note 11) 1,302,514 1,226,683
Total Current Liabilities 10,716,800 20,538,907
Non-Current Liabilities
Aggregate reserves for unexpired risks (Nofe 12) 237,110,657 212,977 422
Total Liabilities 247,827,457 233,516,329
Fund Balances
Guaranty Fund (Nots 14) 45,846,042 41,109,295
Special Funds (Note 15) - 57,113,006 58,912,359
General Fund (Nate 16) 89,124,292 65,816,901
Revaluation reserve on investments at FVTOCI (Nofe 6) 3,205,831 2,323,973
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan (Note 13) 224,870 171,517
Total Fund Balances 195,514,041 168,334,045
R443,341,498

See Nole to Financial Slalements

P401,850,374




STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc.

Years Ended December 31, 2023 2022
REVENUE
Gross members’ premium contributions (Note 17) R94,734,947 B89,907,221
Less contributions to Guaranty Fund (Nole 14) 4,736,747 4,495 360
Net members’ premium contributions 89,998,200 85,411,861
Interest and investment income (Vofes 5 and 6) 13,453,140 10,528,122
Membership fees (Note 17) 2,019,355 1,279,295
QOther income 813,814 4,588
Tolal Revenue 106,284,509 97,223,866
BENEFITS AND OPERATING EXPENSES
Benefits and claims paid to members (Nates 11 and 17) 42,149,505 52,952,943
Increase in aggregate reserves for unexpired risks (Note 12) 24,133,235 9,030,371
Collection costs (Nefes 10) 7,139,131 6,591,442
Membership enrollment and marketing expenses 557,435 393,333
Research and development 50,000 50,000
Other expenses for members 2,357,406 1,568,476
Total Members' Benefits and Expenses 76,386,712 70,586,565
Compensation and employess’ benefits (Mote 18) 3,908,499 2,913,196
General and administrative expenses (Note 19) 2,452,009 2,051,851
Depreciation (Nofe 9) 229,898 223,468
Tolal Benefits and Operating Expenses 82,977,118 75,775,080
NET SUPLUS FOR THE YEAR 23,307,391 21,448,786
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ltem that may not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Changes in value of investments at FVTOCI (Note 6) 881,858 (91,7386)
Changes in value of defined benefit plan (Note 13) 53,353 57,254
Net 935,211 (34,482)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 'P24,242,602 :

Sea Notes fo Financial Stalements.
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R21,414,304
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc.

December 31, 2023 2022
GUARANTY FUND (Nate 14)
Opening balances R41,109,295 B36,613,935
Contributions from members during the year 4,736,747 4,495,360
Closing balances 45,846,042 41,109,295
APPROPRIATED SPECIAL FUNDS (Nate 15)
Opening balances 58,912,359 58,912,359
Disbursements during the year (1,799,353) -
Closing balances 57,113,006 58,912,359
GENERAL FUND (Note 16)
Opening balances 65,816,901 44,368,115
Net surplus for the year 23,307,391 21,448,786
Closing balances 89,124,292 65,816,901
REVALUATION RESERVE ON INVESTMENTS AT FVTOCI
Opening balances 2,323,973 2,415,709
Changes in value of investments in equity securities at FVTOCI (Note 6) 881,858 (91,736)
Closing balances 3,205,831 2,323,973
REMEASUREMENT GAIN ON DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
Opening balances 171,517 114,263
Actuarial and remeasurement gain (losses) 53,353 57,254
Closing balances 224,870 171,517
R195,514,041 R168,334,045

Sea Noles to Financial Statements




STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc.

Years Ended Decembier 31, 2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net surplus for the year B23,307,391 R21,448,786
Add (deduct) adjustments for:
Increase in aggregate reserves for unexpired risks (Note 12) 24,133,235 9,030,371
Provision for relirement benefits (Note 13) 173,003 144,851
Depreciation (Nofe 9) 229,898 223,468
Interest and investments income (Notes 5 and 6) (13,453,140 (10,528,122)
Operaling surplus before changes in working capital 34,390,387 20,319,354
Add (deduct) changes in working capital, excluding cash:
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables (Note 7) 26,398,728 946,748
Other current assets (Nate 8) (162,932) 8,618
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables (Nate 10) (9,897,938) 2,648,322
Insurance contract liabilities (Not= 11) 75,831 (840,968)
Net Cash Provided from Operating Activiies 50,804,076 23,082,076
CASH FLOWS FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and investment income (Notes 5 and 6) 13,453,140 10,528,122
Increase in investments in debt and equity securities (Note 6) 26,387,079 (45,923,730)
Additions to furniture, fixtures and office equipment (Nofe 9) (150,130) (63,480)
Net Cash Provided from (Used for) Investing Activities 39,690,089 (35,459,088)
CASH FLOWS FOR FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in Guaranty Fund (Note 14) 4,736,747 4,495,360
Increase in retirement benefit obligation (402,510) (1,326,866)
Decrease in special funds (1,799,353) -
Net Cash Used for Financing Activities 2,534,884 3,168,494
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 93,029,049 {9,208,518)
OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 64,275,097 73,483,615
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Nots 5) B157,304,146 B64,275,097

See Notes to Financial Stalements.




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc.
As of and the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 1
Organization and Tax Exemption

The Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc. (referred to
in the following sections as 'Association’) was organized by the members of Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin
Dagdag Paseguro, Inc. 'to extend financial assistance to its members, spouse, siblings, children and parents in
the form of death benefis, sickness benefits, provident savings and loan redemption assistance: to ensure
continued access to benefits/resources by aclively involving the members in the management of the
Association that will include the implementation of palicies and procedures geared towards sustainability and
improved services.'

The Assaciation was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 17, 2009
and obtained its secondary license from the Insurance Commission (IC) on August 27, 2009. It is governed by
its Board of Trustees, which receives no compensation. It devotes all its income for the purposes enumerated in
its Articles of Incorporation. It holds office at the 3 Floor of The Chancery Building, Cathedral Compound,
Albay District, Legazpi City, Albay, free of charge, but it shares on the costs of monthly utilities of the building.

As at December 31, 2023, the Assaciation has a total membership of 81,746.

Tax Exemptions
The Association, being an association for the exclusive benefit of its members by providing for the payment of

life and other benefils, is exempt from the payment of taxes from income derived by it, in accordance with
Section 30 (C) of the National Internal Revenue Code, as amended. It has proven by actual operation that its
primary purpose falls under Section 30 (C) of the National Internal Revenue Code (NIRC) of 1997, as amended.
Itis however subject to income taxes on income derived from any of its properties, real or personal, bank
deposits, gains from investments, rental income from real and personal properties. The Association has been
reparting income from interest on its bank deposits and investments at net of the applicable withholding taxes.

The Association is a holder of Certificate of Tax Exemption No. $30 No. 032 — 22— RR=10-RDO067 which
entitles it with tax exemption for three (3) years from August 23, 2022 to August 23, 2026.

Note 2
Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs)

Statement of Compliance
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRSs) and Philippine Interpretations-IFRIC. A, viAE PR

PFRSs include statements named PFRSs and Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretations of
the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC), Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International

Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which have been.approved by the Financial Repcnihg
Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

1
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and approved by the Philippine Board of Accountancy (BOA) and adopted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC).

Because the Association is a supervised entity by the Insurance Commission (IC), it also abides by the
regulations of the Commission particularly those that are set forth under Section 189 of The Amended
Insurance Code and with IC Circular Letter No. 2014-41 Standard Chart of Accounts (SCA) for MBAs, and all
applicable IC Circular Letters and accounting requirements. These regulations and requirements are
substantially compliant with PFRSs and the Revised SRC Rule 68 (2019).

New and Amended IFRS Accounting Standards that are Effective for the Current Year

In the current year, the Association has applied a number of amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the FSRSC (as Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on or after January 1,
2023. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these
financial statements.

Amendments to PAS/IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice

Stalement 2 Making Materiality Judgements—Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Assaciation has adopted the amendments to PAS/IAS 1 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments change the requirements in PAS/IAS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting policies. The
amendments replace all instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies’ with ‘material accounting policy
information’. Accounting policy information is material if, when considered together with other information
included in an entity's financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in PAS/IAS 1 are also amended to clarify that accounting policy information that
relates to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial and need not be disclosed.
Accounting policy information may be material because of the nature of the related transactions, other events or
conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting palicy information relating to
material transactions, olher events or conditions is itself matarial.

Amendments to PAS/IAS 12 Income Taxes—Deferred Tax

related fo Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The Association has adopted the amendments to PAS/IAS 12 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition exemption. Under the amendments, an
entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences may arise on initial recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit, Following the amendments to PAS/IAS 12,
the Assaciation is required to recognize the related deferred tax asset and liability, with the recognition of any
deferred tax asset being subject to the recoverability criteria in PAS/IAS 12.

The forgoing changes does not affect the Association as it is presently a tax-exempt entity.

Amendments to PASAAS 12 Income Taxes—International Tax Reform—Pillar Two Mode! Rules

The Association has adopted the amendments to PAS/IAS 12 for the first time in the current year. The IASB
amends the scope of PAS/IAS 12 to clarify that the Standard applies to income taxes arising from tax law
enacted or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules published by the OECD, including tax
law that implements qualified domestic minimum top up taxes described in those rules, . - -

The amendments introduce a temporary exception to the accouﬁting requirements for deferred taxes in
PAS/IAS 12, so that an entity would neither recognize nor disrcfipgé information about deferred tax assets and
liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes. Presently, the F;j@f«'"rwo model rules have not yet been‘adopted by
Philippine authorities and the amendments do not affect t/r?'é?éocieﬁorj which is a tax-exempt entity.|
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Amendments to PAS/IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in

Accounling Estimates and Errors—Definition of Accounting Eslimates

The Association has adopted the amendments to PAS/IAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of accounting
estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are ‘monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty’. The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted.

New and Revised IFRS Accounting Standards in Issue But Not Yet Effective

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the Association has not applied the following new and
revised IFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective and is some cases has not
yet been adopted by the FSRSC.

— PFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (including the June 2020 and December 2021 amendments to IFRS 17)

— Amendments to PFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Assaciate or Joint Venture

— Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
— Amendments to IAS 1 Non-cuirent Liabilities with Covenants
— Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

— Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liabiiity in a Sale and Leaseback

The management of the Association does not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a
material impact on the financial statements of the Association in future periods.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
confracts and supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Confracts. IFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified for
insurance conltracts with direct participation features, described as the variable fee approach. The general
model is simplified if certain crileria are met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the premium
allocation approach. The general model uses current assumptions to estimate the amount, timing and
uncertainty of future cash flows and it explicitly measures the cost of that uncertainty. It takes into account
market interest rates and the impact of policyholders’ options and guarantees.

In June 2020, the IASB isstied Amendments to IFRS 17 to address concerns and implementation challenges
that were identified after IFRS 17 was published. The amendments defer the date of initial application of IFRS
17 (incorporaling the amendments) to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, At the
same time, the IASB issued Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to
IFRS 4) that extends the fixed expiry dale of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 in IFRS 4 to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. . oty

In December 2021, the IASB issued Initial Application of IFRS 17 and'IFRS 9—Comparative Inform'ation\
(Amendment to IFRS 17) to address implementation challenges that were identified after IFRS 17 was '
published. The amendment addresses challenges in the presentation of comparalive information. IFRS 17:must
be applied retrospeclively unless impracticable, in which case the modified retrospective approach or the fair
value approach is applied. \

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of @nitiél- application is the start of the annual rep’aortin"g
period in which the entity first applies the Standard, and the transition date is the beginning of the period -
immediately preceding the date of initial application. RO s
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The FSRSC adopted the amendments on December 15, 2021 and amended the mandatory effective date of
PFRS 17 from January 1, 2023 to January 1, 2025. This is consistent with Circular Letter No. 2020-62 issued by
the Insurance Commission which deferred the implementation of PFRS 17 by two (2) years after its effective
date as decided by the IASB.

The Association has determined that its existing products extended to its members has significant insurance
risk and therefore meets the definition of an insurance contract, Presently, these are accounted for under PFRS
4, which will be superseded by PFRS 17 beginning January 1, 2025. The Association is working closely with its
actuaries and the mutual benefit industry association it belongs to for guidance and understanding in the
implementation of the provision of PFRS 17.

Amendments to PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS/IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures—Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS/IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or
losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction with an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are recognized in the parent's profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains
and losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has
become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are
recognized in the former parent's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in the new
associate or joint venlure. The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the IASB; however, earlier
application of the amendments is permitted. The FSRSC has not yet reviewed the foregoing amendments,

The Board of Directors of the Association anticipate that the application of these amendments may not have
any impact on the Association’s financial statements in future periods should such transactions arise.

Amendments to PAS/IAS 1 Presentation of Financial

Statements—Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments to PAS/IAS 1 published in January 2020 affect only the presentation of liabilities as current or
noncurrent in the statement of financial position and not the amount or timing of recagnition of any asset,
liability, income or expenses, or the information disclosed about those items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting pericd, specify that classification is unaffected by expectations about
whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability, explain that rights are in existence if
covenants are complied with at the end of the reporting period, and infroduce a definition of 'settlement’ to make
clear that settiement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or

Services.

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early
application permitted. The IASB has aligned the effective date with the 2022 amendments to IAS 1. If an entity
applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period, it is also required to apply the 2022 amendments early.

The FSRSC adopted the amendments on August 19, 2020 and becomes effective beginning January 1, 2023, ...

Amendments to AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements—Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

The amendments specify that only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or before the end of
the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date (and therefore must be considered in assessing the classification of the liability as current or
noneurrent). Such covenants affect whether the right exists at the end of the reporting period, even if
compliance with the covenant is assessed only after the reporting date (€.g. a covenant based'on the entity's
financial position at the reporting date that is assessed for compliance only after the reporting date).

i i N
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The IASB also specifies that the right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date is not affected if an entity only has to comply with a covenant after the reporting period. However,
if the entity’s right to defer settiement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with covenants within twelve
months after the reporting period, an entity discloses information that enables users of financial statements to
understand the risk of the liabilities becoming repayable within twelve months after the reporting period. This
would include information about the covenants (including the nature of the covenants and when the entity is
required to comply with them), the carrying amount of related liabilities and facts and circumstances, if any, that
indicate that the entity may have difficulties complying with the covenants.

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
Earlier application of the amendments is permitted. If an entity applies the amendments for an earlier period, it
is also required to apply the 2020 amendments early. The FSRSC adopted the amendments on November 1 8,
2022 and becomes effective starting January 1, 2024,

The Board of Directors of the Association anticipate that the application of these amendments do not have any
impact on its financial statements in future periods.

Amendments to PAS/IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures—Supplier Finance Arrangements

The amendments add a disclosure objective to PAS/IAS 7 stating that an entity is required to disclose
information about its supplier finance arrangements that enables users of financial statements to assess the
effects of those arrangements on the entity's liabilities and cash flows. In addition, PFRS 7 was amended to add
supplier finance arrangements as an example within the requirements to disclose information about an entity's
exposure to concentration of liquidity risk.

The term ‘supplier finance arrangements’ is not defined. Instead, the amendments describe the characteristics
of an arrangement for which an entity would be required to provide the information.

To meet the disclosure objective, an entity will be required to disclose in aggregate for its supplier finance
arrangements:

»  The terms and conditions of the arrangements

«  The carrying amount, and associated line items presented in the enlity’s statement of financial
position, of the liabilities that are part of the arrangements

*  The carrying amount, and associated line items for which the suppliers have already received payment
from the finance providers

» Ranges of payment due dates for both those financial liabilities that are part of a supplier finance
arrangement and comparable trade payables that are not part of a supplier finance arrangement

o Liquidity risk information

The amendments, which contain specific transition reliefs for the first annual reporting periad in which an entity
applies the amendments, were adopted by the FSRSC on June 19, 2023, and are applicable for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, Earlier application is permitted.

Amendment to IFRS 16 Leases—Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback \
The amendments to IFRS 16 add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions
that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale. The amendments require the seller-

lessee to determine ‘lease payments’ or ‘revised lease payments' such that the seller-lessee does not r\;
a gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee, after the commencement dates

.
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The amendments do not affect the gain or loss recognized by the seller-lessee relating to the partial or full
termination of a lease. Without these new requirements, a seller-lessee may have recognized a gain on the right of
use it retains solely because of a remeasurement of the lease liability (for example, following a lease modification
or change in the lease term) applying the general requirements in IFRS 16, This could have been particularly the
case in a leaseback that includes variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate.

As part of the amendments, the IASB amended an lllustrative Example in IFRS 16 and added a new example to
illustrate the subsequent measurement of a right-of-use asset and lease liability in a sale and leaseback
transaction with variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate. The illustrative examples also
clarify that the liability that arises from a sale and leaseback transaction that qualifies as a sale applying IFRS
15, is a lease liability.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. Earlier
application is permitted. If a seller-lessee applies the amendments for an earlier period, it is required to disclose
that fact. A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 to sale and
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application, which is defined as the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applied IFRS 16.

The amendments were adopted by the FSRSC on October 14, 2022 and are applicable for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. Earlier application is permitted. The Board of Directors of the
Assaciation anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact on the Association's
financial statements in future periods should such transactions arise.

Note 3
Summary of Material Accounting Policy Information

The material accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarized below. The Company’s management expects these policies to influsnce the decisions of users of the
financial statements. Accounting policies related to immaterial transactions or events were no longer disclosed.

Going Concern
The Board of Directors has, at the time of approving the financial stalements, a reasonable expectation that the

Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Basis of Preparalion

The financial statements have been prepared using a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of the year, as explained in the following accounting policies, Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Association takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date, Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposss in the financial statements is determined on such basis, except for
leasing transactions that are within the scope of PFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair

i

value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in PAS/IAS 2 of value in use in PASJ/IAS 36. \

b

The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Association's functional and
presentation currency, and all values are recorded to the nearest peso except when otherwise indicated.
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The preparation of the financial statements made use of estimates, assumptions and judgments by
management based on management's best knowledge of current and historical facts as at statement of
financial position date. These eslimates and judgments affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
contingent liabilities as at statement of financial position date, as well as affecting the reported income and
expenses for the year. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: (a) in the principal
market for the asset or liability; or (b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Association.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair
value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Association uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
dala are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities.

 Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

 Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Association
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Association’s statement of financial position when the
Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assels and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value, except for trade receivables that do not have a significant financing
companent which are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recagnition. Transaction costs directly atiributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Although the Association does not have all of the following financial instruments in its financial statement\s, the
policies governing the accounting of these financial instruments are discussed in detail to allow for the proper
understanding of the policies governing such financial instruments. ;

Financial Assets ' ' /
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assels are recognizedand derecognized on a trade date babis.

o,
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Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognized financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classification of
the financial assets.

Classification of Financial Assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortized cost: (a) the
financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and (b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI): (a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objeclive is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and (b) the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the Association may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial

recognition of a financial asset: (a) the Association may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met [see (iil) below]; and (b)
the Association may imevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch [see (iv) below].

(i) Amortized Cost and Effective Interest Method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are
credit-impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying
amount of the debt instrument on initial recagnition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows,
including expected credit losses, to the amortized cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition,

The amortized cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortized cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortized cost and at FVTOCI. For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effeclive interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become |
credit-impaired (see below). s ; §

For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognized by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting

periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial assgtis no |
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longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Association recognizes interest income by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset from initial
recognition. The calculation does not revert to a gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial asset
subsequently improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,

The Association’s financial assets at amortized costs includes cash and cash equivalents, frade and other
receivables and investments in debt and equity securities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the financial statements at cost. Cash comprise
unrestricted cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, and time deposits with banks that can be
pre-terminated anytime without significant risk of change in value. Cash equivalents (including those
invesled in a trust fund) represent short-term, highly liquid investments maturing within 90 days from
the date of acquisition that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject

to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and other receivables are outstanding balances from debtors less the allowarice for

impairment losses. Receivables are recognized when the Association becomes party to the contract,

which happens when the goods or services are dispatched. They are derecognized when the rights
to receive the cash flows have expired e.g., due to the settiement of the outstanding amount or
where the Association has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards associated with that
contract. Other receivables are stated at invoice value less an allowance for impairment losses.
Trade and other receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost as the business model is
to collect contractual cash flows and the debt meets the SPPI criterion.

— Investments in Debt and Equity Securities

The investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and a fixed
date of maturity that the Association has the positive intention and ability to hold on to maturity. The
investments consist substantially of government debt securities.

(i) Debt Instruments Classified as at FVTOCI

(11)

The Association has no financial assets held at FVTOCI. But debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, changes in the carrying amount of
these financial assets as a result of foreign exchange gains and losses (see below), impairment gains or

losses (see below), and interest income calculated using the effective interest method (see (i) above) are
recognized in profit or loss.

The amounts that are recognized in profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would have been
recognized in profit or loss if these financial assets were to be measured at amortized cost. All other
changes in the carrying amount of these financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When these financial assels are

derecagnized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity Instruments Designated as at FVTOC! j
On initial recognition, the Association may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not

permitted if the equity investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognized by an
acquirer in a business combination.
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Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve. The
cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, instead, it is
transferred to retained eamnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with
PFRS 9 unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

The Association designated all investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading as at FVTOCI
on initial recognition (see Note 5).

Afinancial asset is held for trading if: (1) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the
near term; or (2) on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Association manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (3)
itis a derivalive (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument).

(iv) Financial Assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the crileria for being measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI [see () to
() above] are measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

e Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Association designates
an equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a
business combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition [see (iii) above].

Debtinstruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOC! criteria [see (i) and
(ii) above] are classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortized
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or significanily reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (so
called ‘accounting mismatch') that would arise from measuring asssts or liabilities or recognizing
the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Association has not designated any debt
instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognized in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a designated hedging relationship
(the Association has no hedge investments). The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest eamed on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other services and other income' line
item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in the Association’s material accounting policy
information,

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Association recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that
are measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables and contract assets, The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Association always recognizes lifetime ECL (expected credit losses) for frade receivables, contract-assets
and lease receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are eslimated using a provisiof
matrix based on the Association’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to t'.;e
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast directid(q of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate. - “ % ‘%
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For all other financial instruments, the Association recognizes lifeime ECL when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Association measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

(i) Significant Increase in Credit Risk
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Association compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial recognition,
In making this assessment, the Association considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Association’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organizations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate to the
Assaociation's core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

e Anactual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument's external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e Significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
insfrument, e.g., a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less
than its amortized cost;

 Existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected fo cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
Anactual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor:

o Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor; and

»  Anactual or expecled significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Association presumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Association has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise. - SR

Despite the foregoing, the Association assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if: (1) the financial
instrument has a low risk of default; (2) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term; and (3) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer
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(1)
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(v)

-12 -

term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Association considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of ‘investment grade' in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an intemal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there are no past due amounts.

The Association regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount bacomes past due.

Definition of Default

The Association considers the following as conslituting an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as hislorical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable: (1) when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or (2) information developed internally or obtained from extemal sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Association, in full (without taking into account any collateral held
by the Association),

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Association considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Association has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial assst have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following events: (a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower; (b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event (see (ii) above); (c) the
lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons refating to the borrower's financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; (d) itis
becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial rearganization: or (e) the
disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Wrile-Off Palicy
The Association writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe

financial difficulty and there is no realistic praspect of recovery, e.g., when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement aclivities under the Association’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognized in profit or loss.

Measurement and Recognition of Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default

(i.e., the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the ..
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking, - ¢ 77
information as described above. i ol

As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount
at the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at

\

L

the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default -

date determined based on historical trend, the Association’s understanding of the specific future financing
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information,’, s
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For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Association in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Association expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a lease receivable, the
cash flows used for determining the expected credit losses is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with PFRS 16,

If the Assaciation has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifelime ECL are no longer met, the Association measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-
month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which the simplified approach was used.

The Association recognizes an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve and does not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Association derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. If the Association neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Association recognizes its retained interest in the
assetand an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Association retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Association continues to recognize the
financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss. In addition, on
derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on
derecognition of an investment in an equity instrument which the Association has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is not reclassified to profit or loss but is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities and Equity

Classification as Deht or Equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting

all of its liabilities.

Financial Liabilities
All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL. However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, and financial guarantee contractsissued-=;
by the Association, are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below. : ™ 777y 1&
Financial Liabilities at FVTPL i
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination, (ii) held for trading or (iii) designated as at FVTPL.
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A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: (a) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or (b) on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Association manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
(c) itis a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument,

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration of an acquirerin a
business combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: (1) such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise: or
(2) the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed,
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Association’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or
(3) it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair
value recognized in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The
net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included
in the ‘other services and other income' ling item in profit or loss.

However, for financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is atlributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in olher
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, The remaining amount
of change in the fair value of liability is recognized in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability's credit risk that are recognized in other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition of the
financial liability.

Gains or losses on financial guaranty contracts issued by the Association that are designated by the
Association as at FVTPL are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities Measured Subsequently at Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) conlingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, (ii) held for
trading, or (ili) designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective
interest method,

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effeclive interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortized cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The Association derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Association's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss,

When the Association exchanges with the exisling lender one debt instrument into another one with the \k
substantially different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial Iiability!x;
and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Association accaunts for substantial modification of g
terms of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of |
a new liability. It is assumed that the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value ofthe cdsh |
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the originl i

e
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effeclive rale is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability. If the modification is not substantial, the difference between: (1) the carrying amount of
the liability before the modification; and (2) the present value of the cash flows after modification is recognized in
profit or loss as the modification gain or loss within other gains and losses.

Furmiture, Fixtures and Office Equipment

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Such a cost includes
the cost of replacing part of such furniture, fixtures and office equipment when that cost is incurred, if the
recognition criteria are met.

An item of furniture, fixtures and office equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
(1) IT equipment, 5 years; and
(2) Furniture, fixtures and office equipment, 5 years.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospeclive basis,

The carrying values of the Association’s furniture, fixtures and office equipment are reviewed for impairment
when changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down fo
their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the Association’s furniture, fixtures and office equipment
is the greater of net selling price and value in use. The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale
of an asset in an arm's-length transaction.

Prepaid Expenses
A prepaid expense is an expenditure paid for in one accounting period, but for which the underlying asset will

not be consumed until a future period. Expenditures are recorded as prepaid expenses in order to match their
recognition more closely as expenses with the periods in which they are actually consumed,

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Association's fumiture, fixtures and office equipment and other assets are subject to impairment testing.
Individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset or cash-generating unit's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of fair value, reflecting the market conditions less cost to sell, and value in use, based on an
internal evaluation of discounted cash flow. All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to
the recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of the previously recognized impairment loss.
Actuarial Policies : - |
Actuarial liabilities (reserves for life policy and members’ equity) are computed by the Consulting Actuary of the
Association using actuarial practices generally accepted in the Philippines. Actuarial liabilities and other policy
liabilities represent the estimated amounts which, together with estimated future premiums and net.investmer’jt
income, will provide for outstanding claims, estimated future benefits, and expenses on in-force-policies.
o g e LS TR
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In calculating actuarial liabilities, assumptions must be made about the timing and amount of many events,
including death, investment, inflation, policy termination, expenses, taxes, premiums and commissions. The
Association uses best estimate assumptions for expected future experience. Uncertainty is inherent in the
process, as no one can accurately predict the future. Some assumptions relate to events that are anticipated to
occur for many years in the future and are likely to require subsaquent revision.

Additional provisions are included in the actuarial liabilities to provide for possible adverse deviations from the
best estimates. If the assumption is more susceptible to change or if the actuary is less certain about the
underlying best estimate assumption, a correspondingly larger provision is included in the actuarial liabilities. In
determining these provisions, the Assaciation ensures: (a) when taken one at a time, the provision is
reasonable with respect to the underlying best estimate assumption, and the extent of uncertainty present in
making that assumption, and (b) in total, the cumulative effect of all provisions is reasonable with respect to the
total actuarial liabilities.

With the passage of time and resulting reduction in estimation risk, the provisions are released into income. The
best estimate assumptions and margins for adverse deviations are reviewed annually and revisions are made
where deemed necessary and prudent,

Recording of Claims from Policyholders

Claims incurred comprise settiement and handling costs of paid and outstanding claims arising during the year
and adjustments to prior year claim provisions. Outstanding claims comprise claims incurred up to, but not paid,
at the end of the year, whether reported or not.

Revenue and Cost Recognition

The Assaciation's revenue arises primarily from the premium contributions of members and secondarily from
investment-related transactions such as investment income, dividend income, interest income and other
sources of revenue.

Management has delermined that the revenue from premium contributions of members is within the scope of
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts while the income from investments in financial instruments are within the scope of
PFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Income from olher sources is within the scope of PFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers.

PFRS 4 defines an insurance contract as a ‘contract under which one party (the insurer) accepts significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified
uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder.” PFRS 4 temporarily exempts the
Assaciation from some requirements of other PFRSs until the efficacy of PFRS 17, beginning January 1, 2025,

The Association recognizes revenue as follows:

(1) Premium Contributions
This represents considerations given by the member in exchange for the promises of the MBA to pay a
stipulated sum in the event of a loss covered under the basic benefils indicated in the Internal Rules
and Regulations (IRR) of the MBA and/or membership certificates. Revenue from insurance products
is recognized under PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, which defines an insurance contract as a ‘contract
under which one party (the insurer) accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the
policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified-uncertain future event (the
insured event) adversely affects the policyholder.” PFRS 4 temporarily exempts thé'Assoﬁié'tior:grom
some requirements of other PFRSs until the efficacy of PFRS 17, beginning January 1, 2025.

Under the provisions of PFRS 4, the Association _rebajghizes premium contributions as earned »\jhen
collected with corresponding allocation as approved by the Insurance Commission.(IC). The/proportion
of the premiums collected pertaining to periods after the reporting date is carried forward t
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(3)
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subsequent accounting periods as unearned premiums, so that earned premiums relate to risks
carried during the accounting period.

The members’ gross premium contributions are allocated as follows:

—  50% goes to the reserve for members’ equity, intended for members’ entitlements of equity
value upon payment of the first contribution to the Association, representing 50% of the total
membership dues collected;

—  35% goes to cover basic benefits of members;

— 5% goes to Guarantee Fund, and the remaining

— 10% goes to general operations, to cover administrative costs,

The Association collects its premiums/contributions of members through SEDP-Simbag sa Pag-
Asenso, Inc, an affiliate, with a certain commission (collection cost),

Investments Income

Income from investments is accounted for under PFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Income from
investments in debt and equity equities held to collect contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the
instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value changes) are recognized at amortized
cost, with interest income recognized at the effective interest rate.

Non-Insurance Revenues

The Association recognizes non-insurance revenues in accordance with PFRS 15 Revenue from
Conlracts with Customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Association is
expected to be entitied in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

For each contract with a customer, the Assaciation:

(1) Identifies the contract with a customer;

(2) Identifies the performance obligations in the contract:

(3) Determines the transaction price which takes into account estimates of variable consideration
and the time value of money;

(4) Allocates the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on the basis of the
relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered: and

(8) Recognizes revenue when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that
depicts the transfer to the customer of the goods or services promised.

Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided fo the
customer such as discounts, rebates and refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the customer
and any olher contingent events. Such eslimates are determined using either the 'expected value' or
'most likely amount’ method. The measurement of variable consideration is subject to a constraining
principle whereby revenue will only be recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur.

The measurement constraint continues until the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved, Amounts received that are subject to the constraining principle are initially
recognized as deferred revenue in the form of a separate refund fiability. e T

Cost and Expenses
Costs and expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when a decrease in future

economic benefils related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen, which cian
be measured reliably. Costs and expenses are recognized in the statement of profitor loss: i) on the
basis of a direct association between the cost incurred and the earnings;of specific items of income; ii)
i
£

AP
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on the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to
arise over several accounting periods and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly
determined; or iii) immediately when an expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when,
and to the extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the
statement of financial position as an asset.

Insurance-related costs are accounted as follows:

—  Changes in the required actuarial and other reserves are recognized as expenses during the
year,

—  Plan benefils and claims paid to members, including refund of members’ equity value, are
recognized for benefits availed of by members/beneficiaries.

—  Collection costs (representing commissions to collecting affiliate) are due and payable for
every premium income recognized. Commission rates are based on IC-approved rates.

Grants and Donations
Grants and donations received are valued at fair market value at the time the grants are received.

Compensation and Employees Benefits Expense

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the Association in exchange for services rendered by
employees or for the termination of their employment in the Association. The Association recognizes: (a) a
liability when an employee has provided service in exchange for employee benefits to be paid in the future; and
(b) an expense when the Association consumes the economic benefit arising from the service provided by an
employee in exchange for employee benefits.

The following represent the accounting followed by the Association for all types of employee benefils, except
share-based payment, to which there is none.

Short-Term Employse Benefils

Short-term employee benefits are those expected to be setiled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period during which employee services are rendered, but do not include
termination benefits. These benefils include wages, salaries and bonuses (if there are any) and non-
monetary benefils paid to current employees. These are recognized when the employee has rendered
the service and are measured at the undiscounted amounts of benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service.

The benefils also include compensated absences which are recognized for the number of paid leave
days (including holiday entitlement) remaining at the reporting date. The expected cost of short-term
compensated absences is recognized as the employees render service that increases their entitlement
or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absences oceur, and includes any additional
amounts the Association expects to pay as a result of unused entitlements at end of period. The amounts
recognized are included in the Trade and Other Payables account in the statement of financial pasition at
undiscounted amount that the Association expects to pay as a result of the unused entittement.

Post-Employment Benefit Plans
Post-employment benefit plans that are provided to employees only cover their retirement benefits, - .o
which are paid in lump sum payments at the time of their retirements. The retjg‘émerit:‘b’e‘ﬁeﬁts are: i foy
provided to employees through a defined benefit plan. A defined benefit plarf is a retirement planthat
defines the amount of retirement benefit an employee will receive on retirement. usually dependent on \
one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal abligation for the benefits of - i
the retirement plan remains with the Association, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit
plan have been acquired. Plan assets may include assets specifically’
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fund, as well as qualifying insurance policies. The Association's defined benefit retirement plan covers
all regular full-time employees.

The Assaciation has less than ten {10) regular employees and opted to accrue its retirement benefit
abligation using the provisions of the R.A. 7641, An Act Amending Article 287 of Presidential Decree
No. 442, as Amended, Otherwise Known as the Labor Code of the Philippines, by Providing for
Retirement Pay to Qualified Private Sector Employees in the Absence of any Retirement Plan in the
Establishment. Accrual approach is applied by calculating the expected liability as at reporting date
using the employees’ current compensation and number of years in service. Under this simplified
method, the Corporalion ignores estimated future salary increases, future service of current employees
and possible in-service mortality of current employees between reporting date and date the employees
are expected to retire. The Association considers its retirement benefit obligations at this time as
immaterial when considered its overall liabilities.

e Termination Benefils
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Association before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Association recognizes termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either;
(a) terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal; or (b) providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Benefils falling due more than 12 months after the statement of financial
position date are discounted to present value.

Leases — The Associalion as Lesses

The Association assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Association
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which
itis the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases
of low value assets. For these low value leases, the Association recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattemn in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is inifially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined,
the Association uses its incremental borrowing rate. The Association has no borrowings, but it is investing funds. It
uses the average rales that its investments in financial instruments are getting as the discounted rale justifying that
it becomes the opportunity cost when such investible funds are used to the leases.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

*  Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

*  Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at
the commencement date;

+ The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

*  The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options: and

* Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount-to reflect interest on the lease~,
liability (using effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
The Association remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use asset) whenever: o2
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*  The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a
change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

*  The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due
to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rale is used).

¢ Alease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in
which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
madification.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Association incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the
site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, a provision is recognized and measured under PAS/IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a
right-of-use asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories,

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Assaciation expects to exercise a purchase option, the refated right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful
life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets, if any, are presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position.

The Associalion applies PAS/IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipment’ policy.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and
the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line “Rent" in the statement of profit or loss.

As a practical expedient, PFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead
accounts for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Association has
not used this practical expedient. For contracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Association allocates the consideration in the conlract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components. '

Leases — The Associalion as Lessor
The Association is not a lessor of properties.

4
Contingencies {
A contingency arises when there is a situation for which the outcome is uncertain, and which should be resolved
in the future, possibly creating a loss. The accounting for a contingency is essentially to recognize only those:
losses that are probable and for which a loss amount can be reasonably estimated. Contingent assets are ng
recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. /'
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Contingent liabilities are not recognized either, but these are generally disclosed unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources is remote,

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Assaciation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Association will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material). When some or all of the economic benefils required to settle a provision are expected
to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Events After Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Association’s position at the reporting date
(adjusling events), are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Note 4
Significant Critical Accounting Judgment and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In applying the Asscciation’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3 Summary of Material
accounting policy information, the management of the Association are required to make judgements (other than
those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts recognized and to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The eslimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered fo be relevant. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which the eslimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical Judgements in Applying the Association’s Accounting Policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations {which are presented
separalely below), that the management of the Assaciation have made in the process of applying the
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements.

Business Mode! Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model
tests. The Association determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed togelher to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured,
the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the
assels are compensated.

i

The Association monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income that are derzcognized prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal
and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held, |
Monitoring is part of the Association's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the
remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has
been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. Na'such
changes were required during the periods presented: A ' &
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Significant Increase in Credit Risk

Expected credit losses (ECL) are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or
lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. PFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Association takes into
account qualitative and quantilative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Calculation of Loss Allowance

When measuring ECL the Association uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking information, which is
based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect
each other. Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows
from collateral and integral credit enhancements. Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring
ECL. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of
which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

Fair Value Measurerments and Valuation Processes

Some of the Association’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active
market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the management uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. This involves developing estimates
and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its
assumptions on observable data as far as possible; but this is not always available. In that case, management
uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be
achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date.

Estimating Useful Lives of Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipment

The Association reviews annually the estimated useful lives of its furniture, fixtures and office equipment based
on expected asset utilization. It is possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by
changes in these estimates. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of these properties would increase
recorded depreciation and amortization expense and decrease the related asset accounts,

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset based on expected
future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions
about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

Retirement Benefils

The determination of the Association’s obligation and cost for pension and other employee benefits is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by management in calculating such amounts. While the
Assaciation believes that the assumptions used are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the
actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may materially affect employee benefit ob[_i"cjagfjns;g

Provisions and Contingencies ;
Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies. Policies on -
recognition and disclosure of provision and disclosure of contingencies are discussed in Note 2.
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Note 5
Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account is composed of the following:

December 31, 2023 2022
Cash in banks B27,115,069 R33,001,292
Cash equivalents 130,159,077 31,243,805
Revolving fund 30,000 30,000

R157,304,146 B64,275,097

Cash in banks and cash equivalents eam interest at the prevailing market rates. The effective interest rate on

cash in banks and cash equivalents ranges from 0.10% to 5.5%, maturing in 30 days to 182 days.

Total interest income earned from cash in banks and cash equivalents amounted B2,611,112 in 2023 and

329,619 in 2022. The interest income are recorded net of the applicable withholding (final) taxes.

Note 6
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities

This account consists of the following investments and their purposes:

Decenmber 31, 2023 2022
Investments in debt securities at amortized cost 262,120,789 B288,507,867
Investments in equity securities at FVTPL 504,985 482,926
Investments in equity securities at FVTOCI 28,283,771 20,323,973
Total investments 283,809,545 309,314,766
Less presented under current assets 52,344,559 44,389,487
Presented Under Non-Current Assets 231,464,986 B264,925,279

The Association earned interest income from the investments amounting 10,842,028 in 2023 and 10,198,503 in
2022. The interest income are recorded net of the applicable withholding (final) taxes.

Invesiment in Debt Securities Accounted at Amortized Cost

These investments were acquired through the following banks:

December 31, 2023 2022
Treasury Bills
Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI) B52,344,559 R29,149,198
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (MBTC) - 15,240,289
Sub-Total 52,344,559 44,389 487
Retail Treasury Bonds
Philippine National Bank (PNB) 49,000,000 54,000,000
Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI) 10,000,000. -+ . 19,383,094
Metropalitan Bank and Trust Company (MBTC) 20,870,529 4,982,186
Banco de Oro (BDO) 16,729,272 16,965,706
Security Bank - 9,990,923
Sub-Total 96,599,801

(Carried Forward.)

Y

105,921,909
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(Brought Forward.)

December 31, 2023 2022

Fixed Rate Treasury Notes (FXTN)

Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (MBTC) 20,507,904 20,509,371

Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI) 10,078,525 10,097,100
Sub-Total 30,586,429 30,606,471

Corporate Bonds

Philippine National Bank (PNB) 43,000,000 68,000,000

Metropalitan Bank and Trust Company (MBTC) 10,000,000 10,000,000

Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI) 10,000,000 10,000,000

Rizal Commercial & Banking Corparation (RCBC) 5,000,000 5,000,000

Banco de Oro (BDO) 2,490,000 2,490,000
Sub-Total 70,490,000 95,490,000

Perpetual Preferred Shares

Banco de Oro (BDO) 5,850,000 5,850,000

Philippine National Bank (PNB) 1,250,000 1,250,000

7,100,000 7,100,000

LTNCDs

Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (MBTC) 5,000,000 5,000,000

Total R262,120,789 B288,507 867

The following are the details of the investments:

—  Treasury Bills

The treasury bills represent five (5) short-term, zero-coupon investments in quoted government debt
securities which are issued at a discount on their face value, The treasury bills purchased through
Bank of the Philippine Istands (BPI) with interest rates ranging at 5.25% and 6.30% and will mature on
March 6, 2024, March 20, 2024, May 22, 2024, June 5, 2024 and October 2, 2024,

The roll forward analysis of this account is as follows:

December 31, 2023 2022

Face value ®53,000,000 B44 490,000

Net discount (655,441) (100,513)

Carrying Amount R52,344,559 P44,389,487
—  Retail Treasury Bonds

These are investments in quoted government debt securities with the following features:

a) The retail treasury bonds purchased through PNB amounted R48,000,000, have coupon rates
ranging at 4,625% and 6.25% that will mature on the following dates: March 12, 2024, June 2,

2027 and March 7, 2028;

b) The retail treasury bonds purchased through MBTC amounted R20,610,000, have coupon rates at
4.2625% and 6.50% that will mature on June 2, 2027 and May 19, 2029, respectively; ===

¢) The retail treasury bond purchased through BDO R17,000,000. have coupon rates at 3525% and

6.15% that will mature on August 15, 2023 and September 20, 2026, respectively; and
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d) The retail treasury bonds purchased through BPI amounted 10,000,000, have coupon rate at
4.87% and 6.00% that will mature on March 4, 2027,

The roll-forward analysis of the retail treasury bonds is as follows:

December 31, 2023 2022
Face value R96,610,000 R96,000,000
Net discount/premium (10,199) (66,093)
Carrying Amount 96,599,801 95,933,907

Of the total Retail Treasury Bonds, the investments in PNB, BPI and MBTC, totaling R59,200,000 in 2023
and R41,500,000 in 2022, are restricted investments as these are investments intended for funding the
Guaranty Fund requirements by the Insurance Commission (IC) that need to be maintained by the
Association (see Note 14). These investments have been supported with a Deed of Assignment with
Special Power of Attorney. The effective interest rate on these deposits ranges from 4.125% to 6%,
maturing in 3 years to 5 years from issuance.

—  Fixed Rate Treasury Notes (FXTN)

These are medium to long-term negotiable and transferable debt instruments of the National
Government issued by the Bureau of Treasury. Generally, these notes pay a higher rate of return than
time deposits with a similar tenor and offer semi-annual interest income throughout the tenor if held until
maturity. The FXTN purchased through BPI amounted 10,078,525 will mature on March 22, 2028 with
coupon rate at 6% which has a face value of B10 million. The two (2) FXTN purchased through
Metrobank amounted R20,507,904, will mature on September 7, 2026 and May 19, 2029 with coupon
rate ranging at 6.625% and 6.50%, which has the face value of B20.5 million, with net premiums of
R7,904 as at December 31, 2023.

—  Corporate Bonds
Corporate bonds are debt securities issued by publicly held corporations to raise money for expansion

or other business needs. The interest coupons of corporate bonds are either paid quarterly or semi-
annually with rates ranging from 3.8915% to 6.75%, maturing in 5 years to 10 years from issuance.

—  Perpetual Preferred Shares
Preferred shares have no maturity date and pays a fixed dividend upon issue, usually declared and
paid quarterly, as long as it remains outstanding. Shareholders of perpetuals do not have voting rights
and the issuers of perpetual preferred stock can typically redeem the shares.

The preferred shares purchased through PNB and BDO have an optional redemption after 5 years of
investment. Dividend interest rates of 4.8124% and 6.322% payable quarterly.

— LTNCDs
Long-Term Negotiable Certificate of Deposits (LTNCDs) are offered by banks to investors looking for
relatively safe investment, but with higher interest rates than regular savings accounts or short-term
time deposits. LTNCDs can be sold in the secondary market, even before matunty date. The interest
coupons of LTNCDs are paid quarterly with rates ranging from 3.75% to 3.875%, maturing in 5 years
to 7 years from issuance.

Investment in Equity Securities Accounted at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

This is an investment in the Mutual Security Fund managed by Union Bank of the Philippines' Trust: and.
Investment Services Group. The Association eamns dividends from these.investments and when there'is” f
significant and apparently permanent decline in value of the investment, as indicated by prolonged losses of the
investee (and other factors), the carrying amount of the mvestments are written down to fair value.
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Investment in Equity Sscurities Accounted at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

This consists of Unit Investment Trust Fund (UITF) investment in BPI's Bayanihan Balanced Fund, initially
purchased at B18,000,000, and the fair value of the investment at the end of 2023 amounted P21,183,771. The
increase in value of the investment during the year, amounting P859,798, was recorded in the other
comprehensive income for the year.

Analyses of Impairment in Fair Values of the Investments
The Assaciation's management has determined from its monitoring of the investments that none of the invested
funds are presently impaired.

Certain prior year amounts have been reciassified for consistency with the current year presentation.
These reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of oparations.

Note 7
Trade and Other Receivables

This account consists of the following:

December 31, 2023 2022
Accrued interest income 21,304,608 B704,610
Advances to officers and employees 16,634 15,360
Accounts receivable from SEDP-Simbag sa Pag-asenso, Inc. - 27,000,000
Total 1,321,242 27,719,970
Less allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) 103,494 103,494
Net 1,217,748 27,616,476
Less presented as under current assets 616,476 616,476
Net R601,272 P27,000,000

The accounts receivable from SEDP-Simbag sa Pag-asenso, Inc. represents the funds borrowed by the
Microfinance NGO on December 17, 2018 and is collectible over a period of five (5) years at 6% per annum.
This accounts receivable has been secured with post-dated checks. The transaction was duly approved by the
Insurance Commission (IC) and been fully settled in 2023.

Allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL)
The receivables are provided with 12-month ECL at 1% of principal for current 30 days and 34% for past due
less than one year. Accounts past due for over 1 year have been provided with lifetime ECL at 100%.

A reconciliation of the allowance for expected credit losses during the period is presented as follows:
(Please see table next page.)

December 31, 2023 2022
Opening balances R103,494 B103,494
Provision for impairment losses for the year charged to operations - -
Closing balances RB103,494 R103,494

No ECL was provided in 2023 and 2022 as the existing allowance already covers the required ECL during the
year. j

Management believes the remaining receivables were not impaired at the end of 2023. e
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Note 8
Other Current Assets

This account consists of unused certificates of insurance.

Management believes that these assets were not impaired at the end of the year.

Note 9
Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipment — At Cost

This consists of the following items which are recorded in the books at cost.

December 31, 2023 2022
IT equipment B1,517,494 B1,460,301
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 262,054 169,117
Total 1,779,548 1,629,418
Less accumulated depreciation 1,324,526 1,094,628
Net R455,022 P534,790

The Association enjoys free use of the building facilities of the Roman Catholic Bishop of Legaspi, Inc. It shares

on the costs of monthly utilities of the building.

Reconciliation of the Movements of the Accouns

December 31, 2023 Opening Balances Additions Relirement  Closing Balances
Cost

IT equipment £1,460,301 57,193 P R1,517,494
Furniture, fixtures and office egpmnt 169,117 92,937 - 262,054
Total 1,629,418 150,130 - 1,779,548
Less accumulated depreciation

IT equipment 925,511 219,248 - 1,144,759
Furniture, fixtures and office aqpmnt 169,117 10,650 - 179,767
Total 1,094,628 229,898 - 1,324,526
Net Book Value B534,790 (R79,768) P- R455,022
December 31, 2022

Cost

[T equipment B1,396,821 F63,480 B- B1,460,301
Furniture, fixtures and office eqpmnt 169,117 - - 169,117
Total 1,565,938 63,480 - 1,629,418
Less aceumulated depreciation

IT equipment 702,043 223,468 - 925511
Furniture, fixtures and office eqpmnt 169,117 - - 169,117
Total 871,160 223,468 - - 1,094,628
Net Book Value R694,778 (R159,988) B

- E534,790
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Note 10
Trade and Other Payables

This account consists of the following:

December 31, 2023 2022
Accrued expenses R7,835,813 R6,861,216
Payable to collecting partners for claims paid to members 611,263 11,410,412
Accounts payable - Dakila 438,057 528,711
Savings fund of employees 484,243 467,275
Accounts payable for surrendered membership 44,910 44,610

R9,414,286 R19,312,224

Accrued expenses represent the accrued collection costs subsequently paid in January 2021. Total collection
costs paid to SEDP - Simbag sa Pag-asenso, Inc. amounted B7,139,131 in 2023 and B6,592,442 in 2022.

Note 11
Insurance Contract Liabilities

This consists of the following:
December 31, 2023 2022

Claims incurred but not reported B1,302,514 R1,226,683
Claims in the course of settlement - -
Claims due and unpaid - -
Claims resisted/denied

B1,302,514 P1,226,683

Incurred but not reported claims are claims reported beyond the reporting date whose date of claim happened
three months before the reporting date. For 2023, claims reported in the months of November 2023, December
2023 and January 2024 whose date of death/claim is before November 1, 2023, are included in this category.

Claims in the course of settlement are claims reported and unpaid at the end of the year pending submission
of documentary reqmrements No decision has yet been made whether to deny or to pay the claim. The
amounts recorded as insurance contract liabilities were certified by the Association's Actuary to be in
accordance with sound actuarial principles. Claims due and unpaid benefits represent claim benefits that have
been processed and that the Association recognizes liability on the claims by the member or its beneficiaries.

Total basic benefits and claims paid to members amounted P42,149,505 in 2023 and R52,952,943 in 2022.

Note 12
Aggregate Reserves for Unexpired Risks

The aggregate policy reserves represent the amount which is considered adequate to cover future guaranteed
benefils as they become payable under the provisions of the policies in force. The reserve is the aggregate -
value of future guaranteed benefits less the present value of future net premiums. e L

This following consist of the details of the reserves:
(Please see table next page.)
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Decerber 31, 2023 2022
Aggregates reserves for members’ equity R232,424,418 B209,347,126
Aggregates resarves for credit policies 3,877,162 3,075,161
Aggregates reserves for life policies 809,077 555,135

R237,110,657 B212,977 422

The movements of the reserves during the year are as follows:

Reserves for Reservas for Reserves for

December 31, 2023 Members' Equity Cradit Poiicies Life Policies Total
Provisions during 2014 P65,986,915 B2,351,536 P1,206,266 R69,544,717
Provisions during 2015 13,243,621 (615,593) (812,754) 11,815,274
Provisions during 2016 14,554,323 171,844 (225,963) 14,500,204
Provisions during 2017 14,722,450 219,929 91,466 15,033,845
Provisions during 2018 18,854,769 351,194 368,829 19,574,792
Provisions during 2019 23,337,784 212,229 99,035 23,649,048
Provisions during 2020 26,520,484 (297,510) 454,172 26,677,146
Provisions during 2021 23,013,530 620,848 (482,353) 23,152,025
Provisions during 2022 9,113,250 60,684 (143,563) 9,030,371
209,347,126 3,075,161 555,135 212,977,422

Provisions during 2023 23,077,292 802,001 253,942 24,133,235
B232.424 418 B3,877,162 R809,077 B237,110,657

In accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Code, every outstanding membership certificate must have,
after three (3) full years of being continuously in force, an equity value to at least 50% of the total membership
dues collected from the member less claims paid. The equity is payable to the members upon termination of their
membership in the Association. In accordance with the same Code, the Association is required to put up a reserve
liability not lower than the equity value of all in-force, active certificates as at the end of each calendar year; hence,
the Association sets up the 50% of its gross premium collections as its reserves for members' equity.

The reserve for credit life insurance represents the amount which is considered adequate to cover future
guaranteed benefits on a debtor pursuant to or in connection with his/her specific loans and other credit
transactions with the members of the Assaciation.

The reserve for life policies represents the amount which is considered adequate to cover future guaranteed
benefils as they become payable under the provisions of the policies in force. The reserve is the aggregate
value of future guaranteed benefits less the present value of future net premiums.

The amount of aggregate reserves for members’ equity, reserves for credit policies, resarves for life policies and
reserves for golden life policies for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, have been computed and
certified by the Consuilting Actuary of the Association to be in accordance with commonly accepted actuarial
standards consistently applied and that the legal policy reserves and other actuarial items are fairly stated in
accordance with sound actuarial principles.

Note 13
Retirement Benefit Obligation

The Association's employees are provided with retirement benefits through a defined benefit plan. The plan ™~
defines the amount of pension benefit an employee will receive at retirement age. The legal obligation to pay the |
pension benefils remain with the Assaciation. The Associalion’s defined benefit pension plan covers all regular full*
time employees. f

¥
.
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The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position at the end of 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Retirement Benefit Obligation Recognized in the Stalement of Financial Position

December 31, 2023 2022
Present value of retirement benefit obligation 965,754 B1,103,304
Less fair value of relirement plan asset (1,323,112) (1,177,802)
(Retirement Plan Asset) Retirement Benefit Obligation (R357,358) (P74,498)
Components of Relirement Expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31, 2023 2022
Current service cost R95,262 R92 487
Interest cost on benefit obligation 77,741 52,364
173,003 144,851
Interest income on plan assets - {29,419)
Total charged to profit or loss RB173,003 PB115,432
Changes in the Present Value of the Retirement Benefit Obligation
December 31, 2023 2022
Opening balances B1,098,030 R1,073,035
Current service costs 95,262 92,487
Benefits paid during the year (310,553) E
Interest cost 77,741 52,364
Actuarial gain - changes in financial assumptions - (141,067)
Actuarial loss - experience 5,274 21,211
R965,754 R1,098,030
Principal Assumptions Used fo Determine Pension Obligation
December 31, 2023 2022
Discount rate 7.08% 5.05%
Salary increase rate 3.00% 5.00%
Average expected working lives of employses 18.1 19.1
Movements in the Fair Value of Retirement Plan Assets
December 31, 2023 2022
Opening balances R1,177,802 B-
Interest income - 29,419
Contributions 402,510 1,205,711
Benefits paid (310,553) -
Re-measurement gain (losses) on return on plan assets 53,353 (57,328)
Closing balances (plan assets at PERAA) B1,323,112 B1,177,802

Actual return on plan assets pertain to interests, dividends and olher income together with realized and unrealized
gain or losses derived from the plan assets less any costs of managing the plan and tax payable by the plan itself,
other than tax included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the DBO.

@
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Note 14
Guaranty Fund

This represents the amount required by the Insurance Commission (IC) to be established to guaranty the
benefils and security of policyholders and creditors of the Association, in accordance with the provisions of the
Insurance Code, deposited in a local depository bank. (See Note 6.) The Fund is increased by the 5%

contributions from members.

The Guaranty Fund is funded by invesiments in debt securities, (See Note 6.) which are assigned to the

[nsurance Commission (IC).

Accounting of Guaranty Fund

December 31, 2023 2022
Opening balances R41,109,295 R36,613,935
Members contribution during the year 4,736,747 4,495,360
Closing balances R45,846,042 P41,109,295

Note 15
Special Funds

In accordance with the recommendations of the Insurance Commission, the Association’s Board of Trustees

approved appropriations of the following special funds from the General Fund:

December 31, 2023 2022
Members’ Benefits Fund B26,957,265 P28,756,618
Members' Education Fund 10,378,975 10,378,975
Capacity Building Fund 10,078,527 10,078,527
Research and Development Fund 5,987,210 5,987,210
Acquisition of Systems and Equipment 3,711,029 3,711,029
B57,113,006 R58,912,359
The movements of the appropriated funds during 2023 and 2022, as follows:
Allocations
December 31, 2023 Opening Batances of Net Surplus Disbursements  Closing Balances
Members’ Benefits Fund (70%) B28,756,618 P- (B1,799,353) B26,957,265
Members’ Education Fund (10%) 10,378,975 - - 10,378,975
Capacity Building Fund (3%) 10,078,527 - - 10,078,527
Research and Dev't. (2%) 5,987,210 - - 5,987,210
Acquisition of Sys & Equip (15%) 3,711,029 - - 3,711,029
R58,912, 359 B- (P1,799,353) B57,113,006
December 31, 2022
Members’ Benefits Fund (70%) R28,756,618 P- B- P28,756,618
Members’ Education Fund (10%) 10,378,975 - - 10,378,975
Capacity Building Fund (3%) 10,078,527 - - 10,078,527
Research and Dev't. (2%) 5,987,210 - - 5,987,210
Acquisition of Sys & Equip (15%) 3,711,029 - - 31711,029
P58,912,359 P- B-

The appropriated special funds are funded by the cash and caéh'equivalents of the Association.

ff,' v

R58,912,359

|

I
I



-32-

The disbursements of special funds are considered as benefils paid to members. In 2023, The Board of
Trustees approved to implement the release of 1% on members' equity value to their respective savings
account amounted B1,799,353,

Note 16
General Fund

This represents a portion of the fund balance that is not restricted. According to Section 408, paragraph 3 of the
Insurance Code, as amended (R.A. No. 10607), a mutual benefit association shall only maintain free and
unassigned surplus of not more than twenty percent (20%) of its total liabilities. Any amount in excess shall be
returned to the members by way of dividends, enhancing the equity value or providing benefils in kind and other
relevant services. In addition, subject to the approval of the Commissioner, a mutual benefit association may
allocate a portion for capacity building and research and development, upgrading and improving operating
systems and equipment, and continuing member education.

The Association's General Fund already breached the 20% threshold of its total liabilities at the end of 2023,
amounting to R39,630,271. The Association's management, however, has not yet assigned the excess surplus
but will propose to the Insurance Commission (IC) the establishment of special funds to absorb the excess
portion of the Fund.

Note 17
Members’ Premium Contributions

The Association’s members are charged twenty pesos (B20.00) per week, during their active membership in the
Association. In accordance with its Rules and Regulations approved by the Insurance Commission (IC), the
Association allocates the contributions as follows:

a) 50%is allocated as reserve for members' equity intended for the members’ entitlements of equity value;

b) 35% is intended to cover basic benefils such as payments for death or permanent disability claims of a
member or its legal spouse below sixty-six (66) years old; or four (4) single, biological and/or legally
adopted children who are two weeks old but not more than twenty-one (21) years old single, disabled
and incapacitated to work. If single without children, the members' legal dependents include the
member's biological parents not more than 65 years. If a member's parents are both deceased upon
membership, the member can declare two (2) eldest siblings, at least two (2) weeks old but not more
than twenty-one (21) years old;

c) 5% isintended as additional guaranty fund; and
d) 10% is intended to cover administrative costs and expenses.

Every oulslanding membership certificate must have an equity value to at least 50% of the total membership
dues collected from the member less claims paid. The equity is payable to the members upon termination of
their membership in the Association.

Every year, a number of members withdrew their equity from the Association. During 2023 and 2022, the total
value of equity withdrawn amounted P14,678,748 and P27,135,177, respectively. The withdrawal of eqmty is

treated as part of the benefils paid to members.

gl

F

Gross premiums on credit life insurance plan are income from loans on member which are deducted upfront zn‘

the payment of the loan. The amount of contribution is based on the principal amount and term of loans,
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Membership Fees
The members are also charged with one-time membership fee of B150, which is non-refundable and does not

form part of the members’ accumulated and refundable contributions. The amount is treated as income to
finance part of the requirements for general and administrative expenses not cavered by the 10% allocation
from gross premium contributions. Gross premiums on credit life insurance are income from loans on member's
which are included in the monthly payments of the loans. The amount of contribution is basad on the principal
amount and term of loans.

Total membership fees collected amounted B2,019,355 in 2023 and B1,279,295 in 2022,

Note 18

Details of Compensation and Employees’ Benefits

Years Ended December 31, 2023 2022
Short-term employees’ benefits B3,735,496 R2,768,345
Post-employment benefits (Nofe 13) 173,003 144,851

#3,908,499 B2,913,196

The 2021 total compensation and employees’ benefits was adjusted for the set-up of the actuarially-computed
retirement benefit obligation. (See Note 13.)

Note 19
Details of General and Administrative Expenses
Years Ended December 31, 2023 2022
Meetings and seminars RB451,644 B231,818
Association dues 424,450 268,169
Repairs and maintenance 411,980 180,000
Professional fees 237,490 274,742
Transportation and travel 225,309 247,629
Supplies and materials 187,976 206,207
Taxes, licenses and fees (Nofe 26) 161,796 384,727
Insurance 118,829 115,482
Communication 101,109 66,409
General assembly expenses 95,874 61,017
Representation 2,040 -
Miscellaneous expenses 33,512 15,651
B2,452,009 B2,051,851
Note 20

Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of trade or business, the Association has transactions with its related parties which
include its Board of Trustees, members of various committees and its officers and employees, who are also
members of the Association. These transactions are made substantially on the same terms and conditions as
with olher members of comparable risks. None of the transactions incorporate special terms and COHdItIOI‘IS and
no guarantee is given or received. Outstanding balances are usually settled in cash. S,

Among these related transactions are the following:
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(a) The Association accepts insurance business from the borrowers of SEDP-Simbag sa Pag-Asenso, Inc.
and authorizes the institution to collect premium contributions from these members for certain
commissions. (See Note 10.) Total collection costs incurred amounted F7,139,131 in 2023 and

P5,591,442 in 2022.

(b) SEDP - Simbag sa Pag-Asenso, Inc. obtained an unsecured, interest-bearing loan from the

Association amounting B20 million in 2019. (See Note 7.)

(c) The Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Association is also a member of the Board of Trustees
of SEDP-Simbag sa Pag-Asenso, Inc.

(d) The Association is enjoying free use of the facilities of the Catholic Church in Legaspi City, Albay
although it shares the cost of utilities.

(e) The key management compensation follows:

Years Ended December 31, 2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits B- R549,426
Post-employment benefits - 30,299

R- R579,725

Note 21
Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for which Fair Value is Disclosed

The following table summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Association’s financial assets and liabilities which
are not measured at fair value in the 2023 statement of financial position but for which fair value is disclosed.

T T—

December 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Nofe 5) R157,304,146 P- B- PB157,304,146
Trade and other receivables (Note 7) - - 1,217,748 1,217,748
Inv. in debt & equity securities (Nate §) 283,809,545 - - 283,809,545
R441,113,691 B P1,217.748 B442,331,439
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (Note 10) B- B- B9,414,286 R9,414,286
Insurance contract liabilities (Mote 11) - - 1,302,514 1,302,514
Aggregate reserves for risks (Nofe 12) - - 237,110,657 237,110,657
P- R- PR247827457 PR247,827,457
December 31, 2022
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Nate 5) B64,275,097 P- = B64,275,097
Trade and other receivables (Note 7) - - 27,616,476 27,616,476
Inv. in debt & equity securities (Note 6) 309,314,766 - - 309,314,766
B373,589,863 B-  P27616476 P401,206,339..
Financial liabilities :
Trade and other payables (Nofe 10) B- B~  PB19,312,224 R19,312,224
Insurance contract liabilities (Nofe 11) - - 1,226,683 1,226,683
Aggregate reserves for risks (Note 12) - - 212,977,422 212977422 |
P- P-

233,516,329 |

R233,516,329.
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For financial assets and financial liabilities with fair values included in Level 1, management considers that the
carrying amounts of those short-term financial instruments equal their fair values. The fair values of the financial
assets and financial liabilities included in Level 3 above which are not traded in an active market is determined
by using generally acceptable pricing madels and valuation techniques or by reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same after taking into account the related credit risk of
counter-parties, or is calculated based on the expected cash flows of the underlying net asset base of the
instrument. When the association uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
determine the fair value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. Otherwise, it is
included in Level 3.

Fair Value Measurement for Non-Financial Assets
The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of non-financial assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

December 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Other current assets (Nofe 8) R- B- B197,679 197,679
Furniture, fixt & office equip—net (Note 9) - - 455,022 455,022

P- B- B652,701 R652,701
December 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Other current assets (Nate 8) B- P— B34,747 B34,747
Furniture, fixt & office equip—net (Noe 9) - - 534,790 534,790

P— P- P569,537 B569 537

The Level 3 fair value of the buildings and improvements included under the Furniture, Fixtures and Office
Equipment account was determined using the cost approach that reflects the cost to a market participant to
construct an asset of comparable usage, construction standards, design and layout, adjusted for obsolescence.
The more significant inputs used in the valuation include direct and indirect costs of construction such as but not
limited to, labor and contractor's profit, materials and equipment, surveying and permit costs, electricity and
utility costs, architectural and engineering fees, insurance and legal fees. These inputs were derived from
various suppliers and contractor's quotes, price catalogues, and construction price indices. Under this
approach, higher estimated costs used in the valuation will result in higher fair value of the properties.

Note 22
Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Association maintains a certain level of capital to ensure sufficient solvency margins and to adequately
protect its members. The level of capital maintained is always aimed to be higher than the minimum capital
requirements of the IC. The Association considers the entire equity in determining the capital.

The Association maintains a certain level of capital to ensure sufficient solvency margins and to adequately
protect its members. The Association’s Board of Trustees reviews regularly its capital structure and considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Management regularly monitors the
capital requirements of the Association, taking account of future balance sheet growth, profitability, and any
anticipated regulatory changes, in order to ensure that the Association is at all times able to meet the forecast
future minimum capital requirements. The Association’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the past year.

Compliance wilh Capitalization Requirements
In accordance with the provisions of Chapter VII, Title 1, Section 405 of R.A. 10607, The Amended Insurance |
Code, a mutual benefit association incorporated after the effectivity of. the Code shall conslitute and establish a

N ot@ENTagdSTT el
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Guaranty Fund with initial amount of B5 million, in cash or in government securities, to answer for any valid
benefit claim of any of its members.

The Association has complied with this requirement by having established its Guaranty Fund of P45,846,042
(See Note 14.) and having funded it with assigned investments in debt securities (See Note 6.) at the end of
2023.

Note 23
Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Assaciation is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The Association's principal
financial instruments are its cash and cash equivalents (Note 5), investments in debt and equity securities (Note
6), trade and other receivables (Note 7), trade and other payables (Note 10), insurance contract liabilities (Note
11) and aggregate reserves for unexpired risks (Note 12). The main types of risks are insurance risk, credit and
concentration risks, market risk and liquidity risk.

The objective of financial risk management is to contain, where appropriate, exposures in these financial risks
to limit any negative impact on the Association’s financial performance and financial position. The Association
actively measures, monitors and manages its financial risk exposures by various functions pursuant to the
segregation of duties principle.

The Association is not exposed to foreign currency risk since it has no foreign currency deposits. In 2020, the
Association purchased financial instruments as part of its investment strategies. The Association is now
exposed to investment risks beginning 2020.

Risk Management Structure

The Board of Trustees is mainly responsible for the overall risk management and for the approval of risk
strategies and principles of the Association. The Board of Trustees also has the overall responsibility for the
development of risk strategies, principles, frameworks, policies and limits. It establishes a forum of discussion of
the Association’s approach to risk issues in order to make relevant decisions.

Insurance Risk

The principal risk the Association faces under insurance contracts is the risk that the actual claims and benefit
payments exceed the carrying amount of recognized insurance liabilities. This situation is influenced by the
frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefils paid are greater than originally estimated and subsequent
development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objeclive of the Assaciation is to ensure that sufficient reserves
are available to cover these liabilities. The amount of reserves set-up in the bocks is computed by the Actuarial
Consultant and monitored on a regular basis.

Credit and Concenlration Risks/Investment Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default and/or not honor its financial or contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Association. The Association is exposed to credit risk from financial assets
including its cash held in banks, receivables from agents and others and investments in financial instruments.

The credit risk in respect of cash balances held with banks and time deposits with banks are managed via
diversification of bank deposits and are only with major reputable financial institutions and are regularly
monitored. Trade receivables consist of premiums receivable from active members and from the unremitted
premium collections by the agent-&ffiliate. The Association does not hold any security on the receivables from
agents and others balance and the accounts are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the
Association’s exposure to impairment is not significant.

The investment risk related to investments in financial instruments represents the exposure to loss resulting
from cash flows from invested assets being less than the cash flows required to meet the obligations of the
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expected policy and contract liabilities and the necessary return on investments. To maintain an adequate yield
to match the interest necessary to support future policy liabilities, the Board of Trustees is investing only on
Government financial instruments which are fairly safe investments.

The Association deals only with creditworthy counterparties duly approved by the Board of Trustees. Its
maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statements of financial position is the carrying

amounts as shown in the following table:

Neither Past Due

December 31, 2023 Nor Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents (Nate 5) R157,304,146 R157,304,146
Trade and other receivables (Nofe 7) 1,217,748 1,217,748
Inv. in debt & equity securities (Nots 6) 283,809,545 283,809,545
P442 331,439 R442,331,439
100% 100%
December 31, 2022

Cash and cash equivalents (Note §) R64,275,097 P64,275,097
Trade and other receivables (Nofe 7) 27,616,476 27,616,476
Inv. in debt & equity securities (Nots 6) 309,314,766 309,314,766
P401,206,339 R401,206,339
100% 100%

Credit Quality by Class of Financial Assets Based on the Association’s Raling System
December 31, 2023 High Grade Slandard Grade Total
Cash and cash equivalents (Nofe 5) B157,304,146 B- B157,304,146
Trade and other receivables (Note 7) 1,217,748 - 1,217,748
Inv. in debt & equity securities (Note 6) - 283,809 545 283,809,545
B158,521,894  B283 809,545 R442,331,439
December 31, 2022 High Grade Standard Grade Total
Cash and cash equivalents (Notz 5) B64,275,097 B- - P64,275,097
Trade and other receivables (Nots 7) 27,616,476 - - 27,616,476
Inv. in debt & equity securities (Nale 6) - 309,314,766 - 309,314,766
R91,891573  PR309,314,766 - P401,206,339

Financial instruments classified as “high grade” are those cash transacted with reputable local banks and
receivables with no history of default on the agreed contract terms. Financial instruments classified as “standard
grade” are those receivables from parties who need to be reminded of their duties. No financial assets were

deemed by management as impaired.

Market Risks

Market risk is the possibility that changes in equity prices or interest rates will adversely affect the value of the
Association’s assets, liabilities or expected future cash flows. The Association has no exposure arising from
complex investments since it is not engaging in high risk investments, forward contracts, hedging, and the like,
whether local or foreign transactions. The Association has no exposure to price risks as its investments in
quoted equity and debt securities are of fixed interest rates. The Association's interest rate risk arises from its
time deposits with banks. The Association invested in fixed rate deposits to miligate the risks. The Association
is not exposed to foreign currency risks as it has no assets nor liabilities denominated in foreign Currency, ..

Liguidity Risks

Liquidity risk is that the Association might be unable to meet its obligations. The Association’s objectives to
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manage its liquidity profile are: (a) to ensure that adequate funding is available at all times; (b) to meet
commitments as they arise without incurring unnecessary costs; and (c) to be able to access funding when
needed at the least possible cost. The Association manages its liquidity by carefully monitoring its scheduled
servicing payments for financial liabilities as well as its cash flows due on its day-to—day business.

The data used for analyzing these cash flows is consistent with that used in the contractual maturity analysis in
the following table. Net cash requirements are compared to available cash posilion in order to determine
headroom or any shortfalls. This analysis shows that the available cash position is expected to be sufficient
over the lookout period.

The Association considers its expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and managing liquidity
risk, in particular its cash resources and trade receivables. The Association’s existing cash resources and trade
receivables significantly exceed the current cash outflow requirements. Cash flows from receivables from
agents and others are all due contractually within six months.

Maturity Profife of the Association’s Financial Liabilities

December 31, 2023 Due in One Year Due Over One Year Total
Trade and other payables (Note 10) R9,414,286 P- R9,414,286
Insurance contract liabilities (Nate 11) 1,302,514 - 1,302,514
Aaggregate reserves for unexpired risks (Note 12) - 237,110,657 237,110,657
B10,716,800 P237,110,657  R247,827,457
4.17% 95.83% 100.00%

Note 24

Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of its operalions, the Association makes various commitments and incurs certain
contingent liabilities which are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. Management anticipates
no material losses, if any, that may arise from these commitments and contingencies.

Note 25
COVID - 19 Pandemic Situational Report, January 2024

COVID-19 cases throughout the country have been reported to be declining so much so that Health Secretary
Teodoro Herbosa described COVID-19 as just one of the illnesses that cause respiratory tract infection with its
most recent variants of interest as similar to common coughs and colds unlike previous ones that cause severe
pneumonia. Secrelary Herbosa even confirmed that DOH does not require everyone to wear masks, although
some hospitals still implement strict masking protocols. He also confirmed that DOH no longer has a budget for
the procurement of new vaccines, The vaccines donated by the COVAX Facility are only allotted for senior
citizens and individuals with comorbidities as they are at high risk of hospitalization for severe COVID-19

infection.

The Association's management has determined that the COVID-19 Pandemic generally no longer affectad its
operations in 2023, Management considers this disclosure as the final note on COVID-19 Pandemic.

Note 26 P
Reclassification '

Certain comparative figures to the 2022 financial slatements have been reclassified to conform to the current 77

year's presentation.

&
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Note 27
Authorization of Financial Statements

The Association’s financial statements as of December 31, 2023, and for the period then ended, were

authorized for issue by the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees on April 29, 2024.

Note 28
Details of Taxes, Licenses and Fees

In accordance with the supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations No, 15-2010, the

Association discloses the following:

Years Ended December 31, 2023 2022
BIR taxes and other payments R36,590 B250,111
License renewal and filing fees 116,104 122,110
SEC fees and other payments 4,466 8,150
Local taxes/fees (business permits, etc.) 4,136 3,856
BIR annual registration 500 500
B161,796 R384,727
. QY
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| ANNEX 68-C

SCHEDULE FOR NON-STOCK, NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS

NSPO Form - 1

SWORN STATEMENT

We, FR. JOSE VICTOR E. LOBRIGO and ROSANA D. BALLARBARE, President and Treasurer,
respectively of SIMBAG SA EMERHENSYA ASIN DAGDAG PASEGURO MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION
(SEDP MBA), INC. with address at 2/F SEDCen BLDG, LANDCO BUSINESS PARK, LEGAZPI CITY depose
and state that:

In compliance with the Revised SRC Rule 68, we are stating the following information that
related to the preceding year 2023, to wit:

Documents/ Schedules to the Audited Financial Statements Check if
as of December 31, 2023 NSPO Forms Applicable

1. Affidavit of Willingness to be Audited by the Commission | NSPO Form - 2 v

2. Schedule of Receipts or Income or Sources of Funds v

Other Than Contribuit)ions and Donations H3PO Form - 3

3. Schedule of Contributions and Donations NSPO Form - 4 v

4. Schedule of Application of Funds NSPO Form - 5

5. Certificate of Existence of Program Activity (COEP) NSPO Form - 6

6. COEP issued by Heads/Offices of private institution or

actual beneficiaries/recipients of the program/activity

shall be allowed in lieu of COEP issued by the government

offices/entities.

We hereby certify that this Sworn Statement with duly attached documents/ schedules is
executed to attest to the truth of the foregoing and for whatever legal purpose it may serve.

In witness thereof, we have hereunto affixed our signature this day of 2024 at
, Philippines.

AT -

ROSANA D. BALLARBARE

pr@\efjdent U Treasurer

Shbpyriedjarff)gilvorn to before me, a Notary Public and in EGAZPI CIT City,
on affiants personally, exhibiting their respective competent evidence of
Identification Card issued at issued on

Name Government Issued ID Date of Issue Place of Issue
FR. JOSE VICTOR E. LOBRIGO | Passport P6518852A March 22, 2018 Legazpi City
ROSANA D. BALLARBARE TIN 132-595-112-000 September 3, 2022 | Legazpi City
NOTARY PUBLIC
N &
ARMI L. BALLARAN -
Doc. No. _264 NOTARY PUBLIC —
Page No. ___ b2

fn_QL COMMISSION EXPIRES DEC 31,2025
Pageitlo. _%_ Nlr:.:;%giiiiiiﬂfLEGAZPl CITY/IJAN 2, 2024
: : 2JALBAY/JAN 2, 2024
€ e st W ROLL OF ATTORNEY NO, 56284

MCLE COMPLIANCE NO, VII-0028080/APRIL 14, 2025



NSPO Form - 2
REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
LEGAZPI CITY) S.S.
AFFIDAVIT OF WILLINGNESS TO BE AUDITED BY THE COMMISSION

ROSANA BALLARBARE, of legal age, Filipino and resident of P-2 BRGY. 31 - CENTRO BAYBAY,
LEGAZPI CITY, after having been sworn to in accordance with law hereby depose and state:

| am Treasurer of Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP
MBA), Inc. registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

That |, as authorized by the Board of Trustees of the corporation, hereby manifest its willingness to
be audited by the Commission upon its Order and Authority for the purpose of determining compliance
of the corporation with existing laws and regulations.

That this affidavit is executed to attest to the truth of the foregoing and for whatever legal purpose
and intent it may serve.

In Wit'm“eif?; P[whgggof, | hereby sign this affidavit this ‘ day ogﬂ 2024 at

A4 !

ROSANA BALLARBARE
Affiant
(Signature over Printed Name)

Doc. No. 255 ;
Page No. _ 51
Book No. __ I+ :

Series of 20_2

NOTARTAL COMMISSION EXPIRES DEC 31, 2026
\\ PTR NO 723336/LEGAZPI GITYNAN 2, 2024

\F" NON 8334ZIALBAYIJAN 2,2024
EOLL ORMATTORNEY NO. 56284

MCLE COMFLIANTE NO. VHI-0026080/APRIL 14, 2025



SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS OR INCOME OR SOURCES OF FUNDS

OTHER THAN CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

NSPO Form - 3

Name of Foundation/Organization
SIMBAG SA EMERHENSYA ASIN DAGDAG PASEGURO
MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (SEDP MBA), INC.

SEC Registration No.

CN200902141

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2023

Receipts of Income or Source of Funds

(d)
Amount (indicate
by footage if
other than
Philippine

(e)

currency, then Date
(a) (b) (c) translate in this Received/Period
No. Description of Income Source column) Covered
Members’ Weekly Premium | P75,202,752 For the year
Premium Contribution of December 31,
1 Contribution Members 2023
Premiums Premium P19,532,195 For the year
2 Contributions December 31,
from Loan 2023
Members’ Membership Fee | P2,019,355 For the year
3 Fees/ Dues December 31,
2023
Interest Cash & P13,787,237 For the year
Income from Investments December 31,
4 Deposits and 2023
Investments
Miscellaneous Other income P813,815 For the year
5 from Operations December 31,

2023




NSPO Form - 4

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATION

Name of Foundation/Organization

SIMBAG SA EMERHENSYA ASIN DAGDAG PASEGURO
MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (SEDP MBA), INC.

SEC Registration No.
CN200902141

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2023

Part I. Contributions/Donors?

(a) (b)
No. Name and Address

(c)
Nationality?

(d)
Total Contributions

(e)
Type of Contribution*

There were no
contributions and
donations received
during the year.

P

Cash
____Noncash
(Complete Part Il if there is
noncash contribution)

Cash

Noncash
(Complete Part Il if there is
noncash contribution)

Cash

Noncash
(Complete Part Il if there is
noncash contribution)

Cash
____Noncash
(Complete Part Il if there is
noncash contribution)

Cash

Noncash
(Complete Part Il if there is
noncash contribution)

Cash

Noncash
(Complete Part Il if there is
noncash contribution)

Cash
__ Noncash
(Complete Part Il if there is
noncash contribution)

Cash
___Noncash
(Complete Part Il if there is
noncash contribution)

Cash

Noncash
(Complete Part Il if there is
noncash contribution)

Others (aggregate of
all sources of
income which are
individually below
P100,000)

10

Cash

Noncash
(Complete Part Il if there is
noncash contribution)

(Use separate sheet if necessary)

2 A contributor or danor includes individuals, partnerships, carporations, associations, trusts and organizations.
1, For supranational organization, indicate place of principal office or domicile
4 Cantributians or donations reportable on the Schedule are contributians, donations, grants, bequests, devises, and gifts of murney or property, amounting to

P100,000.00 or mare from each contributor or donar,



NSPO Form - 4

Page 2 of 2
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATION
Name of Foundation/Organization SEC Registration No.
SIMBAG SA EMERHENSYA ASIN DAGDAG PASEGURO
MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION (SEDP MBA), INC, | CN200902141
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2023
(a) No. (c)
from (b) Fair Market Value (d)
Part | Description of Noncash Property Given (or Estimate) Date Received
1 P
2 P i P
3 The Association has not P
i received any noncash property.
5
6
7
8
9
Others (aggregate of all sources of
10 income which are individually below

P100,000)

(Use separate sheet if necessary)
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